
Meeting Minutes of 

Lincoln County Public Property Committee 

   Thursday, November 17, 2011   7:00 p.m. 

Lincoln County Service Center Room 248 

Merrill, Wisconsin 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Jim Alber, Bill Zeitz, Richard Berndt, Ron Mittelsteadt, and John Bailey 

MEMBERS NOT PRESENT:   
VISITORS:  Randy Scholz, Sheila Pudelko, Art Lersch, Amanda Kostman, Christine Vorpagel, 

Caroline Lemke, Greg Hartwig, Brad Becker, Rebecca Kludy, Robert Smith, Diana Smith, Deborah 

Moellendorf, Sandy Thurs, Dick Toeckmann, Dale Christiansen, Cindi Christiansen, Holly Schoeppler, 

and Hayley Schoeppler 

 

1. Call Meeting to Order: Chair Alber called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.   

 

2. Approval of Minutes of last meeting:  Motion by Bailey, second by Zeitz to amend item number 

11, to have the “t” crossed out in Alber.  Motion passed as corrected. 

 

3. Public Comment:  Dale Christiansen from the Fair Association indicated currently there is no 

carnival (rides) for the fair. The carnival backed out from signing with the Fair Association.  Dale 

felt it went back to the last two or three years of not being able to exactly know what the lease 

agreement is going to be and  he felt the micromanaging of the Public Property Committee of the 

Fair Board at the time (now the Fair Association) was a cause for many of the problems.  He is 

currently working on trying to get a carnival for the fair but he does not know if he will be able to 

do that.   

 

Diana Smith requested to ask questions on number 7.   

 

Cindi Christiansen, the 4-H Group felt that the Public Property Committee has been 

micromanaging the Fair Association and has been the cause of problems for getting a carnival.  She 

does not feel it is fair that the 4-H or other non-profit groups should have to pay for the use of the 

fairgrounds.  She indicated that from her understanding that groups that currently use the 

fairgrounds may not because of all the controversy and all the problems.   

 

Rebecca Kludy, is with the 4-H Dog Project.  They only meet once a week.  She said with the 

current structure of option 3 they have to pay $250.00 a year.  She believes that is about what the 

group raises in funds for an entire year.  They would not be able to use the fairgrounds if that was 

the case.  They do not charge anything to anyone to come down for their organization and asked if 

the Committee would be charging everyone that uses the fair including people who hit golf balls, 

or people who walk their dogs or fly kites.   

 

Christine Vorpagel: last year their organization had a contest “Stay Cool” and it received state wide 

attention.  She said it was a very successful campaign and now they are thinking about not holding 

it next year or being a sponsor because of all the problems that are currently going on.  She feels 

the Fair Association, the County Board, and Public Property did not work as a partnership in order 

to make this work.   

 

4. Review of Vouchers:  Randy indicated he had no concerns about the vouchers and the committee 

voiced no concerns.  The vouchers were placed on file. 

 

5. Year to Date Budget Report:  Randy addressed the concern under the budget for the Fairground 

Maintenance Account.  Last month there was a low amount and currently there is about $3,000 

spent out of there.  Randy talked with Dan Leydet, the Finance Director and Dan indicated that 



Public Property Committee 

November 17, 2011      7:00 p.m. 

 

2 

 

credits go in and out of that account for utility usage so it just must have been down last month.   

Currently it is at $3,000 and leaving about $18,000 left in the Fair Maintenance Account.  Randy 

indicated the budget at this time should be at 83% and we are currently at 79%, which is about a 

$30,000 difference so the budget looks like it will make it to the end of the year.  The report was 

placed on file. 

    

6. Supervisor Ron Mittelsteadt’s behavior during and after the October 20, 2011 Public 

Property Meeting:  Alber reported that he wants meeting discussions to stay on point.  He does 

not want any physical or verbal attacks during the meeting or after the meeting and indicated that 

he will run an orderly meeting.  Supervisor Zeitz indicated he wanted this on the agenda and asked 

Chairman Alber to put it on the agenda.  He did not like what Ron Mittelsteadt said after the last 

meeting.  He said that while both Jim and Ron have stood up for him in the past where Board 

members have criticized Bill’s behavior at committees as being disruptive, he said what he has 

done didn’t even come close to what Ron did after the meeting.  He asked Ron if Ron felt what he 

said after the last meeting was appropriate.   Ron addressed the committee and said he has his 1
st
 

amendment right to say what he wants and feels he is representing his constituents.  He feels badly 

about the 4-H and the mess that the Fair Association has been because of the lack of this committee 

to act in the best interest of the constituents.  He feels he has a right to challenge any elected 

official.  Bill then indicated that he tried to say something at the end of the meeting to act as a 

peace maker between Jim and Ron and Ron told him to “shut up”.  Bill asked Ron where, then, was 

his (Bill’s) 1st amendment right?   Bill indicated he did not like the way it was going and asked that 

it be stopped.  Bill feels an apology from Ron to Jim is appropriate.  Ron said no, he would not 

apologize. Alber indicated he would run the meeting by debate and issue not personal agendas and 

wanted to have proper behavior.  Ron accused Alber of using vulgar language in the past during 

various committee meetings.   

  

7. Policy form Implementing Lease Agreements 

• Options for Lease Agreement:  Randy handed out the options from the previous meeting 

with the 3 lease proposals.  Bill Zeitz said he understood at the end of the last meeting that 

the Fair Association was going to come in and sign a lease and that is why we took action 

on option 3 and feels the Fair Association is painting a broad brush to the full committee 

and speaking for himself he understands the importance of the fairgrounds and the fair and 

wants to do everything he can to help the community.  Bill indicated that he has been 

attending the user group meetings because he does care what is going on at the fair and 

fairgrounds. He did indicate that in the past the Rodeo has paid more than the Fair 

Association and did not feel that was fair.   

 

Dale Christiansen, from the Fair Association did not think it was a done deal at the end of 

the meeting.  He did not understand that it was passed and that is why he did not sign the 

lease.  He also found out 2 or 3 days after the meeting that the carnival pulled out of the fair 

and since then has been trying to get another carnival.  Alber also thought it was a moving 

forward and they moved quickly at the last meeting in order for the Fair Association to get 

something done and to work with them.  Dale indicated the Fair Association needs to know 

what their costs are going to be two-three years in advance in order to be able to book 

carnivals.   

 

Brad Becker asked what the total percentage of the County budget was for the Fair.  Randy 

indicated about $20,000 is allocated for fair maintenance.  Brad indicated they need a lease 



Public Property Committee 

November 17, 2011      7:00 p.m. 

 

3 

 

that is concrete.  They can’t have it open ended with the clause and current agreement 

talking about reserved options.  It needs to be a set amount.  Ron indicated that he would 

not sign a contract like this either with an open ended cost not knowing what the total cost 

would be.  Motion by Mittelsteadt, second by Alber to take the options to the user group to 

be looked at and come up with recommendations and bring that back to the Public Property 

Committee and the Public Property Committee will forward that to the County Board.  

Motion passed 5-0.   

 

John Bailey did not feel that it needs to go to the County Board as it is this committee’s 

responsibility to come up with a lease agreement and to implement it.  Richard Berndt felt 

the direction from the County Board was to bring the management group back to the 

County Board once they iron out what the user group would look like and he felt this could 

be added as part of that and all of it could be brought back to the County Board at one time.  

Berndt indicated that maybe work being done by certain organizations could offset the cost 

of the least agreement.  Motion by Zeitz, second by Mittelsteadt to have the current lease 

agreement reflect a fee of $2,000 per month plus utilities with a $300 security deposit.  All 

ayes. 

    

8. Items for Next Month’s Agenda: 
a. Lease Agreement-User group discussion 

b. Estimates for Our Way Kitchen  

 

9. Next Meeting Date:  The next meetings will be December 15, 2011and January 19, 2012. 

 

10. Adjourn:  Motion by Alber, second by Mittelsteadt to adjourn the meeting at 8:20 p.m.   

 


